
NEW HANOVER COUNTY  
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & LAND USE Wayne Clark, AICP 
230 Government Center Drive, Suite 110 Director 
Wilmington, North Carolina  
Telephone (910) 798-7165 Ken Vafier, AICP 
FAX (910) 798-7053 Planning Manager 
planningdevelopment.nhcgov.com  
 

 

  AGENDA 
    Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting 

March 27, 2018, 5:30 PM  
 
 

I. Call Meeting to Order (Chairman Ray Bray) 
 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes from February 27, 2018 Meeting 
 

February Attendees: Ray Bray, Hank Adams, Cameron Moore, Richard Kern, Mark Nabell 
 

III. Regular Items of Business 
 

1. Case ZBA-926 – Casco Signs, Inc., applicant, on behalf of Oak Ridge Properties at Porters 
Neck, LLC, property owner, is requesting a variance from the freestanding sign area 
allowance in the Office and Institutional Zoning District per Section 52.3-4 of the New 
Hanover County Zoning Ordinance.  The property is located at 212 Porters Neck Road, 
Wilmington, NC. 

 
IV. Other Business 
 

V. Adjourn 
 
 



 

1 
 

MINUTES 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

February 27, 2018 
 
The New Hanover County Zoning Board of Adjustment held a regular and duly advertised meeting at 5:30 P.M. at the New 
Hanover County Government Center Complex, 230 Government Center Drive, in the Lucie Harrell Conference Room, 
Wilmington, NC, on Tuesday, February 27, 2018. 
 
Members Present                                                                                 Members Absent 
Raymond Bray- Chairman      Kristen Freeman 
Hank Adams, Vice-Chairman                           Brett Keeler 
Cameron Moore                Joe Miller 
Richard Kern 
Mark Nabell 
 
Ex Officio Members Present 
Ben Andrea, Executive Secretary 
Sharon Huffman, Deputy Attorney 
Denise Brown, Clerk 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:35 P.M. by the Chairman, Mr. Ray Bray. 
 
Chairman Bray explained that the Zoning Board is a quasi-judicial board appointed by the Board of Commissioners to 
consider zoning ordinance variance from residents in New Hanover County where special conditions would create 
unnecessary hardships. He said the Board also hears appeals of the County’s interpretation and enforcement of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  The appellants have thirty days in which to appeal any decision made by the Board to Superior Court. 
 
APPROVAL OF JANUARY 23, 2018 MINUTES 
 
Following a motion by Mr. Cameron Moore and seconded by Vice-Chair Hank Adams the minutes of the January 23, 2018 
meeting was unanimously approved. 
 
CASE ZBA-921 
 
Chairman Bray then swore in County staff, Mr. Benjamin Andrea. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated that Mr. Scott Stewart, applicant and property owner, is requesting variances from the yard 
requirements of Section 51.5-2 of the New Hanover County Zoning Ordinance. The property is located at 397 Whisper 
Park Drive, Wilmington, NC. The property is zoned R-20, Residential District.  
  
Mr. Andrea presented stated the subject property on 397 Whisper Park Drive located off Middle Sound Loop Road. The 
adjacent property to the west is the Sandy Brook community zoned R15. Across from Middle Sound Loop Road area resides 
the Demarest Landing subdivision zoned R20S. Mr. Andrea stated the R20 land classification is for low density residential 
with intent to discourage that is detrimental to quiet residential nature of the area within the R20 zoning district. Mr. 
Andrea stated that the subject site is currently undeveloped with the exception of fencing on the site.  
 
Mr. Andrea stated the county’s zoning and subdivision regulations allow for subdivision to utilize performance or 
conventional requirements.  Mr. Andrea stated that under conventional requirements, lots that are created must adhere 
to the dimensional requirements of the zoning district.  Mr. Andrea stated lots that are created with conventional 



 

2 
 

requirements under the R-20 zoning must meet the dimensional requirements of Section 51.5-2.  This includes yard 
requirements. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated a yard is an area of the lot that is not incumbent by any portion of the structure.  Mr. Andrea stated 
the yard requirements essentially creates the building setbacks for structures on conventional residential lots.  Mr. Andrea 
stated features such as decks, staircases, or porches cannot encroach into any required yard area. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated the applicant is requesting variances from the front and side yard requirements for R-20 for the subject 
parcel, which was created under conventional residential regulations.   
 
Mr. Andrea stated lots in the county can also be created under performance residential criteria.  Mr. Andrea stated that 
lots created under performance residential criteria do not have to meet the same dimensional standards as lots created 
under the conventional residential requirements.  There is no minimum lot size or yard requirement for performance lots. 
Mr. Andrea stated there is a periphery setback requirement of 20’ from the property line for performance residential 
projects, and that single family structures must be a minimum of 10’ apart.  
 
Mr. Andrea explained that Demarest Village was approved in 1999 as a performance residential subdivision.  The adjacent 
lot to the subject site, Lot 10A, was recorded in 2000 prior to the subject parcel site created in 2009.  Mr. Andrea stated 
the townhome on the adjacent Lot 10A of Demarest Village is setback of 10ft from the front property line.  This townhome 
has no yard requirements to meet because on a performance residential lot.  However, there is a 20’ easement in which 
a structure cannot be located. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated the applicant proposes to construct a single family residence on the subject property with an attached 
front porch that would abut the property line, an arbor walkway, and garage on the site.  Mr. Andrea explained that 
because the structure, arbor, and garage are all proposed to be attached, all portions of the structure would require 
adhering to the county ordinance yard requirements. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated the applicant’s request is to reduce the 30’ front yard setback to zero, and reduce the side yard setback 
to 3’.  Mr. Andrea stated that although portions of the structure encroach into the required side yard different distances, 
only one variance is necessary to allow encroachment into the required side yard.  
 
Chairman Bray inquired of the distance from 395 Whisper Park and the subject site property line. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated the distance from the adjacent property line and the subject site is more than 20’.  Mr. Andrea stated 
the applicant proposes to align the proposed home to the adjacent neighboring townhomes.  Mr. Andrea due to the two 
lots were created under different sets of criteria, one lot has to adhere to the yard requirement and the other site does 
not. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated to position the proposed structure inline to the adjacent lot the applicant must obtain a variance to 
move structure closer to the property line as well as the side property line. 
 
Mr. Moore inquired of the subject site correct address.  Mr. Moore inquired of the neighboring homes as it pertains to 
the proposed front porch alignment to the adjacent subdivision. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated the variance request for the side yard requirement is due to existing trees at the location.  The applicant 
does not want to remove the trees but rather construct the proposed arbor walkway around existing landscaping on the 
subject site. 
 
 



 

3 
 

Mr. Andrea presented pictures of the subject site provided by the applicant showing different views of the property.  Also 
presented was the site plan that was submitted in the application packet. 
 
Mr.  Moore inquired of the pipes in the presented slides as it pertains to the subject site.  
 
Mr. Andrea responded that they appeared to be temporarily stored on the site. 
 
Chairman Bray asked whether the acreage of the subject site is 0.46 acres.  Also, the Chairman inquired of the square 
footage of the walkway, porch, house and garage of the proposed structure subject site. 
 
Mr. Andrea affirmed the parcel acreage and deferred to the applicant about the square footage of the proposed structure. 
 
Mr. Moore inquired of the history of the lot. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated the applicant has owned the lot for a number of years and his understanding is that the intent was 
always to construct a home on the subject site.  He stated that although the site is close to Demarest Village, the subject 
site is a standalone lot and not subject to adjacent subdivision guidelines. 
 
Mr. Miller inquired of the mapping error to the subject site. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated it is his understanding that the property line was not supposed to include a jog on the subject site.  
 
Chairman Bray inquired of stormwater regulations on the subject site. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated to the best of his knowledge he is not aware of any stormwater regulations to the subject site parcel. 
 
Mr. Kern inquired of the water and sewer easement existing on the map. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated some of the existing easements surrounding the subject site were in place but reworked during the  
design and implementation of Demarest Village. 
 
Chairman Bray then swore in Mr. Scott David Stewart. 
 
Mr. Scott Stewart (on behalf of SP3 LLC, applicant & property owner) – Mr. Stewart presented today with residency at 
6933 Running Brook Terrace in the Demarest Landing Subdivision for the past 19 years. Mr. Stewart stated in his 40-year 
career expansion he’s been involved in landscape architecture in various projects with extensive knowledge and 
experience licensed realtor and constructor of all his project involvement. Mr. Stewart stated he’s been involved in 
engineering consultant in projects in the northeastern area. Mr. Stewart stated he moved to Wilmington in 1993 to 
working with the Stewart family in constructing Demarest Landing as well as Demarest Village and bring new urbanist 
ideas in the subdivision with additions of alleys and unique park spaces.  
 
Mr. Stewart previously he partnered with Cape Fear Tomorrow and closed on the Demarest Landing property in 1999 to 
compartmentalized various housing structures such as homes and town houses. Mr. Stewart stated he had a vision of 
bringing unique street scape to the southeastern region.  Mr. Stewart stated the close proximity of Demarest Village and 
Demarest Landing has a sentimental uniqueness to his heritage as the subdivisions were named in tribute to his late father. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated he previously owned parcels in Demarest Landing; however, in 2009 the neighborhood was turned 
over to the HOA.  Mr. Stewart stated currently he maintains ownership of 2 lots adjacent to Demarest Village subdivision.  
 



 

4 
 

Mr. Stewart stated the 2 lots he owns are not affiliated with Demarest Landing.  Mr. Stewart stated in 2009 he worked 
with the Planning Staff in subdividing the 2 lots in support of the mixed use project currently known as Rip Tide Aquatic 
Center and Daycare Center which sits on nearby 2 acres.  Mr. Stewart stated the project was approved by county 
commissioners, stormwater improvements were implemented as required.  Mr. Stewart stated a stormwater permit is 
initiated for the project at 397 Whisper Park with 750 impervious coverage. 
  
Mr. Stewart stated currently his family is contemplating downsizing from current residence and constructing a home at 
the subject site.  Mr. Stewart stated the plan has always been to create a Charleston-type homestead for the subject site.  
Mr. Statement stated he is huge on tree preservation; he does not want to remove trees on the lot. The pipes on the site 
are leftover remnants from past construction in the neighborhood.  Mr. Stewart stated the plan is to rent the house until 
he and his spouse are prepared to move in the home. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated he is planning to design the proposed home similar to the townhomes that reside at the neighboring 
Demarest Landing subdivision.  Mr. Stewart stated the porches are approximately 4ft from the homes he is proposing 
similar design to ensure a view of the neighborhood.  
 
Mr. Stewart stated in 2009 the lot was recorded however during the survey process the jog on the lot was incorrectly 
placed.  Mr. Stewart stated he reserved himself an acre to design two reasonable size homes in the future for he or his 
four children.  Mr. Stewart stated sewer and water were made accessible for the lots along with access easements. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated he wanted to continue the pattern of 40-50 ft. lots.  Mr. Stewart he was granted ingress, egress, 
drainage, utilities, and shared stormwater coverage for 397 & 407 Whisper Park. Mr. Stewart stated both parcels are 
outside of the Demarest subdivisions. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated there have been variances granted in the past for parcels in Demarest Landing.  Mr. Stewart stated the 
subject parcels were kept out of the Demarest Landing due to long term cost of HOA maintenance fees.  Mr. Stewart 
stated with the close proximity of the subdivision he and his family will enjoy the surrounding landscape and scenery. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated he is seeking a variance to construct a home similar to the nearby homes in the neighborhood.  Mr. 
Stewart stated his plan is to construct a smaller home than he currently resides in for he and his wife.  
 
Mr. Stewart stated in pushing the home forward he would have 35ft distance between the house and the garage. Mr. 
Stewart stated the proposed open arbor with a roof would be 6’x6’.  Mr. Stewart stated the arbor would be 3’ from the 
property line. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated realignment of the proposed home would require extensive research of entitlement previously 
approved permits would be timely and costly.  Mr. Stewart stated he wanted to have a 10’ setback to mimic the homes in 
the neighborhood. 
 
Chairman Bray then closed the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Kern inquired to the length and distance of the arbor from the house and or the garage. 
 
Mr. Kern inquired as to why cannot the property owner relocate the proposed home closer to property line. 
 
Chairman Bray inquired about the 27.7 front yard allowance as submitted in the petitioner’s packet and was this dimension 
previously approved.  Mr. Bray inquired of the proposed porch encroachment if any.  
 
Mr. Moore inquired of the flag lot definition.  Mr. Moore inquired the location of the front yard setback, whether it would 
be from Middle Sound Loop Road or not. Mr. Moore inquired of the address of the proposed home. 



 

5 
 

 
Mr. Moore inquired of ownership of a slight piece of the common area(jog) in close proximity of the applicant’s lot. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated the neighboring subdivision requires every feet of square footage to meet open space requirements. 
 
Mr. Moore inquired of the application necessity of a variance if the jog on the applicant’s parcel were eliminated. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated that a variance would still be necessary. 
 
Chairman Bray inquired what type of trees located on the subject site. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated the trees on the subject site are not substantial trees; they are black gum trees nicely maintained. 
 
Chairman Bray inquired of the walkway allocation. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated all allocation of walkway for proposed home would be impervious. Mr. Stewart stated the declaration 
of restrictive conveyance book 5709, page 458, allots 397 Whisper Park 10,700 sf of impervious coverage. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated the proposed home for the subject site is 3100 sf.; consisting the porch and garage. 
 
Chairman Bray inquired of the size of the porch. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated the proposed home would have a two-story porch similar to the neighboring town homes. 
 
Mr. Moore asked of the advertising requirements and or notification of ZBA cases. 
 
Mr. Andrea stated neighbors located 500 ft. of the subject site are mailed the advertisement notice, the notice is also 
listed in the public newspaper two consecutive Mondays prior to the meeting, also a sign is posted on the site. 
 
Mr. Moore inquired whether residents have been made aware of today’s proceedings and no one has presented objection 
to the variance.  
 
Mr. Andrea stated he received two phone calls and a walk-in regarding inquire of the meeting. No opposition was made 
once he explained the applicant’s request. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated two weeks prior he spoke to board members at Demarest Village to inform his proposal of seeking a 
variance for the subject site; he did not received opposition from the board. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated the architectural review committee typically want homes to similar the theme of the neighborhood; 
and it appears the applicant is attempting to build on the original footprint to blend the home within the neighborhood 
scheme. 
 
On a motion by Vice-Chairman Adams and seconded by Mr. Nabell the Board voted unanimously to GRANT a 30’ variance 
from the 30’ front yard requirement of Section 51.5-2 and a 12’ variance from the 15’ side yard requirement of Section 
51.5-2 with no conditions.  

 
 
 
 
 



 

6 
 

The Board cited the following conclusions and findings of fact: 
 

1. It is the Board’s conclusion that, if the applicant complies with the literal terms of the ordinance, specifically 
the 30’ front yard requirement and 15’ side yard requirement per Section 51.5-2 of the New Hanover County 
Zoning Ordinance, that an unnecessary hardship would result.  This conclusion is based on the following 
FINDINGS OF FACT: 

 Strict application of the yard requirements in Section 51.5-2 would result in the location of a structure on 
the subject property to be highly inconsistent with the location of structures in the surrounding 
neighborhood and in particular the adjacent parcel. 
 

2. It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship of which the applicant complains results from unique 
circumstances related to the subject property, such as location, size, or topography. This conclusion is based 
on the following FINDINGS OF FACT: 

 The subject parcel directly abuts a developed lot in a subdivision created under performance residential 
criteria, which allows for flexibility in the location of structures and has resulted in structures to be located 
close to the existing road. 

 The subject parcel was created under conventional residential criteria, which the Zoning Ordinance 
requires strict front, side, and rear yard requirements to be met. 

 
3. It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the 

property owner. This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT: 

 A “jog” was created adjacent to the subject parcel with the recordation of the Demarest Village 
subdivision plat and not realized until recently. 

 
4. It is the Board’s conclusion that, if granted, the variance will be consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent 

of the ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved. This conclusion is 
based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT: 

 Granting the requested variances would allow the placement of a structure on the subject property in a 
manner consistent with the adjacent property and surrounding neighborhood.   

 Allowing the proposed home to be situated in the manner as a result of the approved variances creates 
no hazard to public safety. 

 
There being no further business before the Board, it was properly moved by Mr. Moore and seconded by Mr. Miller to 
adjourn the meeting.  
 
All ayes. 
 
 
  
______________________________________            _________________________________ 
Executive Secretary                                                             Chairman 
 
 
 
Date: _______________________ 



ZBA-926, 3/18                            Page 1 of 5 

VARIANCE REQUEST 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

March 27, 2018 
 
CASE:  ZBA-926, 3/18 
 
PETITIONER: Casco Signs, Inc., applicant, on behalf of Oak Ridge Properties at Porters Neck, LLC 
 
REQUEST: Variance from the freestanding sign area allowance in the Office and Institutional Zoning District 

per Section 52.3-4 of the New Hanover County Zoning Ordinance 
 
LOCATION: 212 Porters Neck Road 
 PID: R02800-004-038-000 
 
ZONING: O&I, Office and Institutional District 
 
ACREAGE: 1.37 Acres 
 
PETITIONER’S REQUEST: 
 

Casco Signs, Inc., applicant, on behalf of Oak Ridge Properties at Porters Neck, LLC, property owner, is requesting 
a variance from the freestanding sign area allowance in the Office and Institutional Zoning District per Section 
52.3-4 of the New Hanover County Zoning Ordinance.  The property is located at 212 Porters Neck Road, 
Wilmington, NC. 
 
BACKGROUND AND ORDINANCE CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
In early 2004, a 1.83-acre rectangular shaped parcel, shown on the subdivision plat recorded at Map Book 44 Page 
147 as owned by James A. Lanier, was requested to be rezoned from R-15, Residential District, to B-1, Business 
District.  The adjacent properties owned by Oak Ridge Properties had already been rezoned to B-1, and the 
shopping center was under construction as a retail center including a grocery store.  At the time, Planning Staff 
was concerned about commercial zoning encroaching into the adjacent residential area, and recommended the 
1.83-acre parcel be rezoned to O&I, Office and Institutional District, instead of the requested B-1 district.  
Ultimately, the Planning Board recommended to rezone the 1.83-acre parcel partially to B-1 and partially to O&I.  
The applicant was receptive to this recommendation, and the Board of Commissioners approved the split-rezoning 
in February 2004. 
 
In 2006, the 1.83-acre parcel subject to the 2004 rezoning was recombined into the adjacent properties on a 
subdivision plat recorded at Map Book 50 Page 139.  This subdivision plat reconfigured the parcel boundary, 
resulting in the parcel shape currently on record.  The subdivision plat also created the access easement areas 
which are now the driveways that serve the shopping center. 
 
The subject parcel has remained vacant and undeveloped since the rezoning and parcel boundary reconfiguration.  
However, a fuel station is proposed to be developed on the subject parcel and has been approved for the 
necessary permits for construction (Project ID 17-3272). 
 
Subsequently, a sign is proposed for the new fuel center that would be located on the subject parcel near the 
frontage along Porters Neck Road, in an area of the parcel that is zoned O&I.  However, the proposed sign exceeds 
the 12 sq. ft. in area allowed for “advertising signs” in the O&I zoning district per Section 52.3-4(1) of the Zoning 
Ordinance: 
 



ZBA-926, 3/18                            Page 2 of 5 

 
Section 52.3:  O&I Office and Institutional District 

 
52.3-1: The purpose of the Office and Institutional District shall be to provide areas where 

institutional uses, professional office uses and other uses compatible to uses of an office 
or institutional nature shall be encouraged to locate and to provide protection for this type 
land use from encroachment by other less desirable uses. The district's principal means of 
ingress and egress shall be along collector roads, minor arterials, and/or major arterials 
as designated on the County's Thoroughfare Classification Plan. (8/4/86) 

 
52.3-2: DELETED (1/5/81) 
 
52.3-3: DELETED (1/5/81) 
 
52.3-4: Signs and Lighting for Office and Institutional Districts: 
 

(1) Advertising Signs: One sign of an advertising nature depicting the name or nature 
of a product, service or business located on that premise shall be permitted on any 
premise in the O & I District. Such signs shall be limited to twelve (12) feet in 
surface area and shall not exceed the height of the principal structure on the 
premise. Such signs, if illuminated, shall be indirectly illuminated with the source 
of light concealed from the view of any public street or any residential lot. 

(2) Directional Signs: Signs of a directional nature shall be permitted; however, each 
such sign shall not exceed two (2) square feet in surface area (one side) with no 
lighting and shall be limited to seven (7) feet in height. 

(3) Outdoor lighting: The source of any outdoor lighting in an O & I District shall be 
concealed so as not to be visible from any public street or any residential lot. 

(4) In the case of premises located adjacent to minor or major arterials as identified 
in the New Hanover County Thoroughfare Classification Plan, total signage shall 
be limited to 75 square feet in surface area. (1/2/96) 

 
The proposed sign area is 74” wide by 126” in height, resulting in a proposed area of 64.75 sq. ft., a difference of 
52.75 sq. ft. over the 12 sq. ft. allowed under Section 52.3-4(1).   
 
Section 52.3-4(4) allows for larger signs up to 75 sq. ft. in area in the O&I zoning district if the sign is located 
adjacent to a road classified as a minor or major arterial.  According to the 2015 Functional Classification Map of 
roads in New Hanover County from the Wilmington Metropolitan Planning Organization, the portion of Porters 
Neck Road adjacent to the proposed sign location is classified as a major collector; therefore, the increased sign 
allowance in Section 52.3-4(4) is not applicable. 
 
Area allowances for signs in other zoning districts are found in Section 94-4 of the Zoning Ordinance: 
 



ZBA-926, 3/18                            Page 3 of 5 

94-4: Principal Use Signs  
 

(1) Freestanding Signs  
 

(C) Primary - One primary freestanding sign per premises, as per Table -1 of this 
Article.  

 
Table 1: Freestanding Sign Standards  

 

Zoning 
District 

Number 
of 
Lanes(1) 

Street 
Frontage 
(Feet) 

Front 
Setback(2)(3) 
(Min./Max.) 
(Feet) 

Max. 
Primary 
Sign 
Height 
(Feet) 

Max. 
Aux. 
Sign 
Height 
(Feet) 

Max. 
Primary 
Sign 
Area (SF) 

Max. 
Aux. 
Sign 
Area 
(SF) 

B-1, PD 2 N/A 10 / 20 20 10 50 25 

4 < 100 10 / 20 20 N/A 50 N/A 

> 100 10 / 20 20 12 65 32 

B-2, I-1, 
I-2, A-I, 
SC 

2 < 100 10 / 20 20 N/A 65 N/A 

> 100 10 / 25 20 18 100 50 

4 < 100 10 / 25 20 N/A 100 N/A 

> 100 10 / 30 25 20 150 75 

> 300 10 / 30 30 20 175 90 

 
 

NOTE (1)  Number of lanes refers to the ultimate number of lanes based upon existing roadway 
conditions or upon construction plans approved as part of the current NC DOT Transportation 
Improvement Program. 
 
NOTE (2)  Notwithstanding the minimum and maximum front setback requirements indicated above, 
primary freestanding signs which do not exceed 6 feet in height and are less than 76 percent of the 
maximum sign area established above may be located within 5 feet of the front property line and shall 
have no maximum front setback.  
 
NOTE (3) “Front Setback" refers to the setback from the front or corner side property lines. 

 
Signs in the B-1 zoning district are allowed to be up to 50 sq. ft. if located adjacent to a 2-lane road or adjacent to 
a 4-lane road with less than 100’ of street frontage.  If located next to a 4-lane road with more than 100’, signs 
are allowed to be up to 65 sq. ft. in area.  The subject parcel has 30.01’ of frontage according to the dimension 
shown on the subdivision plat that created the subject parcel’s configuration. 
 
For the record, Section 90 under Article IX of the Zoning Ordinance describes the purpose of the sign regulations 
found in that article: 
 

Section 90:  Purpose 
 

The purpose of this section is to coordinate the type, placement, and physical dimensions of signs 
within the different zoning districts; to recognize the commercial communication requirements of 
all sectors of the business community; to promote both renovation and proper maintenance of 
signs; and to guarantee equal treatment under the law through accurate record keeping and 



ZBA-926, 3/18                            Page 4 of 5 

consistent enforcement. The general objectives of these standards are to promote the health, 
safety, welfare, convenience and enjoyment of the public, and in part, to achieve the following: 
(12/7/87) 

 

(1) Safety - To promote the safety of persons and property by providing that signs:  
 

(A) Do not create a hazard due to collapse, fire, decay, collision, or 
abandonment;  

(B) Do not obstruct fire-fighting or police surveillance; and 

(C) Do not create traffic hazards by confusing or distracting motorists, or by 
impairing the driver's ability to see pedestrians, obstacles, or other 
vehicles, or to read traffic signs.   

 

(2) Communications Efficiency - To promote the efficient transfer of information in 
sign messages by providing that:  

 

(A) Those signs which provide messages and information most needed and 
sought by the public are given priorities; 

(B) Businesses and services may identify themselves; 

(C) Customers and other persons may effectively locate a business or service; 

(D) No person or group is arbitrarily denied the use of the sight lines from the 
public right-of-way for communication purposes; and 

(E) Persons exposed to signs are not overwhelmed by the number or size of 
messages presented, and are able to exercise freedom of choice to 
observe or ignore said messages, according to the observer's purpose.  

 

(3) Landscape Quality and Preservation - To protect the public welfare and to 
enhance the appearance and economic value of the landscape by providing that 
signs:  

 

(A) Do not interfere with scenic views;  

(B) Do not create a nuisance to persons using the public rights-of-way;  

(C) Do not constitute a nuisance to occupancy of adjacent and contiguous 
property by their brightness, size, height or movement;  

(D) Are not detrimental to land or property values; and  

(E) Contribute to the special character of particular areas of the community, 
helping to orient the observer within it.   
 

(4) Outdoor Advertising Signs - Outdoor advertising signs are herein regulated for the 
purposes of regulating excess signage, encouraging the positive economic 
development of the county, preserving and improving tourism views, promoting 
the safety of the traveling public, protecting existing property values in both 
residential and nonresidential areas, preventing the overcrowding of land, and 
protecting the aesthetics of the county. 

 
The regulations are designed to prevent their over-concentration, improper 
placement, and excessive height, bulk, number and area. It is recognized that, 
unlike on-premise identification signs, which are in actuality a part of a business, 
outdoor advertising is a separate and distinct use of the public thoroughfare. With 



ZBA-926, 3/18                            Page 5 of 5 

a view to this distinction, outdoor advertising signs are regulated differently from 
on-premise signs. 

 
The only zoning districts for which sign regulations are specifically outlined in Article V:  District Regulations are 
the O&I zoning district and the Riverfront Mixed Use (RFMU) zoning district.  Signs that fall within the Special 
Highway Overlay District (SHOD) are also subject to additional standards per Section 55.4-3(6): 

 

(6) Signs - Signs shall be in accordance with Article IX except that only one free standing 
ground sign not to exceed six (6) feet in height and a maximum surface area of 150 square 
feet may be permitted within the 100 foot setback. No outdoor advertising signs shall be 
permitted. (3/14/94) 

 
The portion of the parcel proposed for the sign is outside of the SHOD by approximately 90’ and therefore the 
sign regulations above are not applicable. 
 
In summary, the petitioner is requesting a 52.75 sq. ft. variance from the 12 sq. ft. sign area allowance per Section 
52.3-4(1).  If approved, the variance would allow a sign with a face area up to 64.75 sq. ft. to be constructed on 
the portion of the subject site in the O&I zoning district.  In the application, the petitioner has included draft 
findings of fact to support the four conclusions required to approve the variance, along with detailed site plans 
depicting the proposed sign location and design. 
 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT POWER AND DUTY: 
 
The Board of Adjustment has the authority to authorize variances from the terms of the Zoning Ordinance where, 
due to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the regulations would result in unnecessary hardship.  In 
granting any variance, the Board may prescribe appropriate conditions and safeguards in conformity with the 
Zoning Ordinance.  A concurring vote of four-fifths (4/5) of the voting members of the Board shall be necessary to 
grant a variance.  A variance shall not be granted by the Board unless and until the following findings are made: 

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance. It shall not be necessary 
to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property. 

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or 
topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from 
conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for granting 
a variance. 

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of 
purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance 
shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship. 

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that public 
safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved. 

 
ACTION NEEDED (Choose one): 

1. Motion to approve the variance request based on the findings of fact (with or without conditions) 
2. Motion to table the item in order to receive additional information or documentation (Specify). 
3. Motion to deny the variance request based on specific negative findings in any of the 4 categories 

above. 



167167
165165
165165

212

168

404

162163

188

304

377
373

329

303

339

311307

372
368

364

330

361

402

408

178
195

179

327

388
384

342
348

349

317
313

319
315

316

392 354

305

381

333

204

335
337

204

208

408

216

412

400

203
205

201

321
401

404

217207

317

217
221

313

305

213

309

301

406

8211
8211

8201

8275

8246
8243

82428238

82098209

8236

8271

8405

8401

8259

8231

8255

8239

82598255

8227

8223

8124

8262

82548254
8254

8311

8350

8422

8406

8207

82438239

8211

8207

8376

8258

8262
8262

8254

8260

8286

8290

8408

8312

8207

8215

8207

8138

8207
8211

8232

8362

8205

8208

8209
8216

82128201

8224
8228

8213

8220

8370

8211

8146

8318 8342

8200

8204

8219

8205

8410

8126

8130

8320

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P, NRCan,
Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand),
NGCC, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User CommunityE 500

Feet

Vicinity Map

New Hanover County Zoning Board of Adjustment

212 Porters Neck Road
Variance Request:  Variance from the freestanding sign area per Section 52.3-4 
Applicant:  Casco Signs, Inc.
Owner:  Oak Ridge Properties at Porters Neck LLC

March 27, 2018

Case ZBA-926



BRAY
S

PORTERS NECK

FROGMORE

HUGHES

E 100
Feet

Aerial Map

New Hanover County Zoning Board of Adjustment March 27, 2018

Case ZBA-926
212 Porters Neck Road
Variance Request:  Variance from the freestanding sign area per Section 52.3-4 
Applicant:  Casco Signs, Inc.
Owner:  Oak Ridge Properties at Porters Neck LLC



R-15
B-1  

R-15

R-15

B-1  

B-2

B-1  CZD B-2

B-1  

O&I

R-15

CUD B-1

I-1

R-15

E 500
Feet

Zoning Map

New Hanover County Zoning Board of Adjustment March 27, 2018

Case ZBA-926
212 Porters Neck Road
Variance Request:  Variance from the freestanding sign area per Section 52.3-4 
Applicant:  Casco Signs, Inc.
Owner:  Oak Ridge Properties at Porters Neck LLC



bandrea
Polygonal Line



bandrea
Polygon























 

 

 

NEW HANOVER COUNTY 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

230 GOVERNMENT CENTER DRIVE, LUCIE HARRELL CONFERENCE ROOM #601 

WILMINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA 28403 

Raymond Bray, Chair     Henry “Hank” Adams, Vice Chair 

Joe Miller, Board Member     Cameron Moore, Board Member     Mark Nabell, Board Member   

Kristin Freeman, Alternate     Brett Keeler, Alternate     Richard Kern, Alternate 

 

Wayne Clark, Planning & Land Use, Director – Sharon Huffman, Deputy County Attorney 

 

ORDER TO GRANT/DENY A VARIANCE – Case ZBA-926 
 
The Zoning Board of Adjustment for New Hanover County, having held a public hearing on March 27, 2018 to 

consider application number ZBA-926, submitted by Casco Signs, Inc., applicant, on behalf of Oak Ridge 

Properties at Porters Neck, LLC, property owner, a request for a variance to use the property located at 212 

Porters Neck Road in a manner not permissible under the literal terms of the ordinance and having heard all 

the evidence and arguments presented at the hearing, makes the following FINDINGS OF FACT and draws the 

following CONCLUSIONS: 

 
1. It is the Board’s conclusion that, if the applicant complies with the literal terms of the ordinance, 

specifically the 12 sq. ft. free standing sign area allowance per Section 52.3-4 of the New Hanover 
County Zoning Ordinance, that an unnecessary hardship would result/would not result.  (It shall 
not be necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be 
made of the property.)  This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 
2. It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship of which the applicant complains results/does not 

result from unique circumstances related to the subject property, such as location, size, or 
topography.  (Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from 
conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for 
granting a variance.)  This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 



 

 

 
3. It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship did/did not result from actions taken by the applicant 

or the property owner.  (The act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist 
that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.)  This 
conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 
4. It is the Board’s conclusion that, if granted, the variance will/will not be consistent with the spirit, 

purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is 
achieved.  This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 __________________________________________________________________________.   

 
THEREFORE, on the basis of all the foregoing, IT IS ORDERED that the application for a VARIANCE from New 
Hanover County Zoning Ordinance to allow a ____’ variance from the 12 sq. ft. area allowance for 
freestanding signs in the Office and Institutional Zoning District per Section 52.3-4 of the New Hanover County 
Zoning Ordinance be GRANTED/DENIED, subject to the following conditions, if any: 

 
 

 
ORDERED this 27th day of March, 2018. 
 
 
____________________________________                
Raymond Bray, Chairman                    
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________                
Benjamin Andrea, Executive Secretary to the Board            


	3.27.18 Agenda
	Feb Draft Minutes 2018
	ZBA-926 Staff Summary
	ZBA-926 Vicinity Map
	ZBA-926 Aerial Map
	ZBA-926 Zoning Map
	Pages from B44-P147
	Pages from B50-P139
	ZBA-926 Application
	ZBA-926 App
	HT #191-Fuel Center Wilmington, NC (Ground Sign Variance)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Applicant Agent Form - Casco
	Applicant Agent Form - Harris Teeter
	Property Owner Agent Form
	ZBA-926 Order DRAFT

